
 

 

 

Rutland County Council                   
 
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP. 
Telephone 01572 722577 Email:governance@rutland.gov.uk 

        
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
A meeting of the EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE will be held via 
Zoom https://zoom.us/j/94914870548 on Tuesday, 29th September, 2020 
commencing at 7.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to attend. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Mark Andrews 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/my-
council/have-your-say/ 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1) APOLOGIES  
 

 

2) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any 
disclosable interests under the Code of Conduct and the nature of those 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 

 

3) APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR  
 

 

4) MINUTES  

 To confirm the Minutes of the Employment and Appeals Committee held on 18 
February 2020, previously circulated. 

 

5) PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS  
 
 

6) QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS  

 To consider any questions received from Members of the Council in 
accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 95.  

Public Document Pack

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fzoom.us%2Fj%2F94914870548&data=02%7C01%7Cjoannamorley%40rutland.gov.uk%7C90fda378d7ff4c5a033808d82d7dc614%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637309365497978902&sdata=PsA9ajvrFbLtXiq%2BYeYjfA2jzdDDpNKcmfORXmjG8xs%3D&reserved=0
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/


 

 

 

7) NOTICES OF MOTION  

 To consider any Notices of Motion from Members submitted under Procedure 
Rule 97. 
 

 

8) APPRENTICESHIP STRATEGY  

 To receive Report No.99/2020 from the Strategic Director for Resources. 
(Pages 3 - 14) 

 

9) HR POLICIES  

 To receive Report No.100/2020 from the Strategic Director for Resources. 
(Pages 15 - 22) 

 

10) ANY URGENT BUSINESS  

 To receive items of urgent business which have previously been notified to the 
person presiding. 
 

 
---oOo--- 

 
TO: ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 
 

Mr K Bool (Chairman) 

Mr J Dale 
Mrs K Payne 
Mrs S Harvey 
Miss M Jones 
Mr N Woodley 
Miss G Waller 

 
  

 
OTHER MEMBERS FOR INFORMATION 

 



Report No: 99/2020 
PUBLIC REPORT 

EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 

29 September 2020 

APPRENTICESHIP STRATEGY  

Report of the Strategic Director Resources 

Strategic Aim: Develop a sustainable Medium Term Financial Plan to support service 
delivery (4.3) 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr O Hemsley, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Rutland One 
Public Estate and Growth, Tourism and Economic Development, 
Communications, Resources (other than Finance) 

Contact Officer(s): Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic 
Director Resources 

01572 758159 
Sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk 

 Carol Snell, Head of Human 
Resources 

01572 720969 
csnell@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors N/A 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee: 

1. Notes the Council’s approach to the Apprenticeship Levy/Target and progress towards 
an Apprenticeship Strategy.  

2. Is introduced to one of the Council’s Apprentices in order to hear about their 
experience in Rutland. 

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 To notify the Committee of our progress, development and experience of 
Apprenticeships since the Levy and target was introduced in 2017 and to get a 
perspective of the experience of one of our Apprentices.  

2 BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Apprenticeship Levy and Public Sector Apprenticeship Target were introduced 
in 2017 as part of the Government’s efforts to deliver 3 million apprenticeship starts 
by 2020.   Public Sector bodies with 250 or more staff have a target to employ an 
average of at least 2.3% of their staff as new apprentice starts annually, over the 
period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2021.  The Levy is charged at a rate of 0.5% of an 
employer’s paybill.   

3

Agenda Item 8

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
mailto:csnell@rutland.gov.uk


2.2 Experience across the sector is that the policy and the target has been a challenge 
in local government with just over a third of organisations having met their 
contribution to the target, and have spent about 10% of the Levy so far. 

 
3 WHAT HAVE WE DONE AND HOW ARE WE DOING? 

3.1 As with most authorities, Year 1 and Year 2 were restricted in part by the limited 
range of Apprentice standards that were available – hence our focus was the Team 
Leader/supervisor standard and Health and Social Care.   The Human Resources 
team worked closely with local managers to identify and support use of the 
standards from a training and development perspective and we were laying 
foundations for the wider use of Apprenticeship roles.   

3.2 In Year 3, the level of interest and understanding was continuing to grow – through 
bulletins, manager briefings and local discussions, and we started to see an 
increase in the number of apprenticeship roles.   

3.3 The charts in Appendix A highlight for each year our target and the number of 
Apprentice starts we achieved.   The target numbers can include Apprenticeship 
roles and existing staff who undertake an Apprentice standard.     

3.4 Apprenticeship levy - the following table identifies the contribution into the Levy and 
how we are performing to date.  

YEAR CONTRIBUTION ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE 

2017-18 £50,393 £7,791 

2018-19 £54,169 £32,998 

2019-20 £57,292 £53,002 

2020-21 (PROJECTED) £56,680 £58,025 

 

Apprenticeship levy paying organisations have 24 months from the date of payment 
to utilise the levy, with the earliest payment being utilised first.  

The earliest payment within our account that we have not yet used relates to January 
2019, meaning we have until January 2021 to use that contribution before it expires.  
Current commitments within the account cover this contribution, therefore the 
Council does not have any Apprenticeship levy funding that is at risk of being 
removed from the account. 

3.5 In summary, we consider we have performed well in the first 3 years – achieving 32 
apprenticeship programme starts against a cumulative target of 36.   However, we 
recognised in mid-2019 that there was more to be done and we needed a strategy 
and a detailed plan in place for subsequent years and importantly, enable 
Apprentices to be an integral part of our workforce and employee development 
model.   

4



4 NEXT STAGES 

4.1 In 2019, we were successful in securing a place on the 2019/20 Apprenticeships 
Accelerator Programme sponsored by the LGA and Education Skills Funding 
Agency. In 2018/19 they supported 22 projects covering 37 Councils – 
predominantly larger authorities.   There was no cost to Rutland and we benefited 
from 8 days of targeted support from one of the LGA’s Workforce advisers between 
July 2019 and January 2020.    

4.2 The overall aim of the programme was to: 

 increase apprenticeships starts, through the delivery of an Apprenticeship 
Strategy and action plan  

 deliver a ‘deep dive’ for a specific service to explore its workforce data and 
people analytics. 

4.3 It was our intention for this strategy to be in place for April 2020 but unfortunately 
further work and its completion has been deferred whilst we support the organisation 
with the Covid-19 response work.  The following provides a summary of activity we 
undertook with the LGA, followed by an outline of the programme to be picked up 
from September 2020. 

4.4 Accelerator Programme: 

4.4.1 To help raise awareness of Apprenticeships and Apprentice standards and how 
these can be effective within teams, we carried out 8 workshops with a range of 
managers from across the organisation.  We used a Workforce Planning Five 
Stage approach for these discussions to help and encourage managers to focus 
on what they currently have, what they need, what is the gap, what action is needed.   
In particular where does this start to draw opportunities for career grades, 
Apprenticeship roles and Apprentice standards. 

4.4.2 These were first stage, exploratory discussions to help support an approach and 
thinking about skills needed within teams, and to provide a tool for managers to 
identify what they currently have.   They were also used as an opportunity to 
consider how Apprentice standards and Apprenticeship roles could be incorporated 
into teams and for manages to feature that in discussions with staff about 
development, but also moving posts into Apprenticeship roles in the future.   

4.4.3 Since these workshops we have: 

 Updated our career grade structures in Adult and Children’s Social Care 

 Designed and implemented a Planning Career Grade 

 Designed and implemented a Building Surveyor Career Grade 

 Appointed to four Apprenticeship roles - in Planning, Finance and Revenues and 
Benefits 

 Supported three existing members of staff to follow an Apprentice standard - in 
Business and Administration, and Social Work.   

4.4.4 We carried out more focused workshops within two service areas to test the model 

5



in 4.4.1 in more depth - Business Support, and Revenues and Benefits.   Some key 
outcomes of the workshops were: 

 Clear understanding of both strengths and weakness within the team 

 Recognition that there is no career pathway nor talent pipeline to fill key roles 

 Recognition of the skills and qualities needed to deliver a quality service - 
particularly the ‘softer’ behavioural skills 

 Recognition of the need to increase skill levels in some areas – this would also 
improve team and service resilience 

 Greater appreciation and understanding of the range of apprenticeship 
standards which could be used within the team to help skill development – these 
would increase core skills and resilience 

 Raised awareness of the importance of continuous growth and development 
within the team and hence the team’s ability to respond to work pressures, 
changes in demand and new services 

 Provided a tool for the manager to carry out local workshops within the team to 
help them shape team and individual development needs  

 The scope to develop career pathways within the service 

 The Business Support workshops enabled the team to create a clear vision, and 
to develop a process for identifying and progress development needs. Many 
team members have started learning to address their needs - predominantly 
around digital skills 

 The Revenues and Benefits team’s workshop was particularly helpful in 
highlighting issues with the team’s succession plan. As a result of the findings 
they have recruited an Apprentice, who joined the team in August 2020.  

4.4.5 The model and the process worked really well – it was enlightening for the service 
managers, and the LGA Adviser left us with an approach that we can use within 
services and teams as a generic workforce planning model, in addition to helping 
identify opportunities for Apprenticeships.     

4.4.6 The LGA Adviser also worked with us on examples and templates on which to base 
our Apprenticeship Strategy, supported with key objectives and actions.   This is 
work in progress with a target date of December 2020.   

4.5 Next Steps 

4.5.1 As previously, our progress has unfortunately been delayed due to the implications 
of the Pandemic.    We will be picking up key areas of work later in the year and will 
also take the opportunity to assess and potentially incorporate, some new 
government initiatives (see para 4.5.3).    Our overarching vision is: 

 To deliver an Apprenticeship programme that is available to individuals from all 
ages, from those who have limited or no work experience/qualifications to those 
wanting a career change 

6



 To embed Apprenticeships within the workforce and as an integral part of local 
workforce planning 

 Apprenticeships to be recognised across the organisation as a highly effective 
means for us to build our pipeline of skills and future talent.  

4.5.2 Key areas of work: 

 Develop the ‘Workforce Planning Five Stage’ approach into a tool that managers 
can use locally to identify development needs for their service and staff – 
improving resilience.     

 Identify Apprenticeship opportunities to support the needs identified in those 
plans.   (This will also identify needs and opportunities for career pathways and 
career grade structures that will enhance recruitment and retention).   October 
2020 to March 2021. 

 Raise awareness of apprentice standards as a route to progress for all 
employees – communication, case studies, briefings.   October 2020 onwards. 

 Work with service managers to map apprentice standards to critical skill needed 
within their service.  October 2020 onwards. 

 Share good news stories – positive experiences of our Apprenticeships.  
December 2020. 

 Improve the promotion and attraction of apprenticeships as career choices for 
young people and disadvantaged groups e.g. care leavers.    January to March 
2021.  

 Identify opportunities to use relevant supervisory and management 
apprenticeship frameworks to support aspiring and developing managers.  
January to March 2021. 

 Work with key providers, partners and other local authorities to identify existing 
and new qualification routes and standards.   Ongoing. 

4.5.3 New Government announcements: 

 Apprenticeship Incentive Payments – a new payment for employers of £2,000 
for each new apprentice that is hired aged under 25, and £1,500 for each new 
apprentice aged 25 and over.    This is in addition to the £1,000 payment the 
government also provides for new 16-18 year old apprentices.  (NB. Only paid 
out for new employees). 

 Kickstart Scheme – there is a £2bn fund to create high quality 6-month work 
placements aged at those aged 16-24 who are on Universal Credit and are 
deemed to be at risk of long term unemployment.   Individuals on the Kickstart 
Scheme cannot also undertake an apprenticeship at the same time. 

 Expansion of Traineeships – an extra £111m will be available in 2020/21 to triple 
the provision of traineeships in England.   The Government will also provide a 

7



£1,000 payment for employers providing trainees with work experience up a 
maximum of 10 trainees.   

 We are awaiting further information from the Department for Work and Pensions 
on these schemes, but it is planned that we will offer placements in the Places 
Directorate, to support work around climate change. It is also anticipated that we 
would offer placements across the Council to support short-term project work 
around backlog arising from Covid-19.   

 
5 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There are consultation requirements arising out of this report.  

 
6 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

6.1 Working towards the Apprenticeship Levy and target became a requirement under 
the Government scheme introduced in 2017.  

6.2 In addition, the Council considers that apprenticeship roles and standards are an 
integral part of our workforce model providing positive and effective job and training 
opportunities for all.   

 
7 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

7.1 Most costs of supporting an Apprentice standard are met from the Levy.  If the Levy 
is not ‘spent’ this is lost revenue.    Para 3.4 outlines how the Council is currently 
performing against the Levy.   

 
8 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

8.1 The Council must be compliant with relevant employment law and regulations. 

8.2 We are able to develop our own local policy and provision that exceeds legislative 
minimum requirements. 

 
9 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed as there no 
risks/issues to the rights and freedoms of natural persons. 

 
10 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

10.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed as there is no 
differentiation for the provisions against the Protected Characteristics.  

 

 

8



11 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 There are no Community Safety implications arising from this report. 

 
12 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 The Council has an overall duty of care to its employees which means taking all 
steps which are reasonably possible to ensure the health, safety and wellbeing of 
staff.   Clear and fair policies and procedures can also be a key factor in building 
trust and reinforcing commitment to our staff and help improve staff retention, 
productivity and performance and greater employee engagement.  

 
13 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS  

13.1 This paper updates and advises the Committee on the Council’s approach and 
performance to Apprentices since the scheme was introduced in 2017 and 
appraises them of our ongoing work.   

 
14 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

14.1 There are no additional background papers to the report. 

 
15 APPENDICES  

Appendix A – Apprentice Starts – Years 1 to 4. 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A – APPRENTICE STARTS – Year 1 to 4 (Report 99/2020) 
 

 

APPRENTICE STARTS – Year 1 to 4 

Year 1  - 2017/18 

Target Starts: 13        Starts achieved : 12 

Team Course Status 

IT IT Applications Specialist Framework Level 2 
Progressed to L3 
qualification  

Planning Team Leader/Supervisor Level 3 (Standard)  Left RCC  

Active Rutland Team Leader/Supervisor Level 3 (Standard)  Current employee  

Transport Team Leader/Supervisor Level 3 (Standard)  Current employee  

Active Rutland Team Leader/Supervisor Level 3 (Standard)  Current employee  

Adult Social Care Team Leader/Supervisor Level 3 (Standard)  Current employee  

Employment Support Community Support Worker  Moved roles within RCC  

Community Support Level 5 Health & Social Care Management  Left RCC  

Community Support 
Level 3 Advanced Health and Social Care 
(framework)  Left RCC  

Community Support 
Level 3 Advanced Health and Social Care 
(framework)  Current employee  

Community Support 
Level 3 Advanced Health and Social Care 
(framework)  Left RCC  

Community Support 
Level 2 Intermediate Health and Social Care 
(framework)  Current employee  

    

    

Year 2 - 2018/19 

Target Starts: 12        Starts achieved : 14 

Team Course Status 

RALS Level 2 Business Admin 
Progressed to L3 
qualification 

IT Level 3 Advanced IT Current employee 

Libraries 
Public Service Operational Delivery Officer - 
Level 3 Current employee 

Community Support 
  

Lead Adult Care Worker Level 3 Current employee 

Community Support 
  

Lead Adult Care Worker Level 3 Current employee 

11



APPENDIX A – APPRENTICE STARTS – Year 1 to 4 (Report 99/2020) 
 

 

Community Support 
  

Lead Adult Care Worker Level 2 Current employee 

Community Support 
  

Lead Adult Care Worker Level 2 Current employee 

Early Intervention 
  

Team Leader/Supervisor Level 3 (Standard) Current employee 

Planning 
  

Team Leader/Supervisor Level 3 (Standard) Current employee 

Adult Social Care 
  

Operations/Department Manager Level 5 Current employee 

Housing and Community 
Resilience 

  
Operations/Department Manager Level 5 Current employee 

Early Intervention 
  

Operations/Department Manager Level 5 Current employee 

Adult Social Care 
  

Operations/Department Manager Level 5 Current employee 

Adult Social Care 
  

Operations/Department Manager Level 5 Current employee 

    

    

Year 3 - 2019/20 

Target Starts: 11       Starts achieved:  6     

Name Course Status 

Learning and Skills Business and Administration Level 3 
Current employee - 
progressed to L3 

Oakham C of E Children & Young People’s Workforce Level 2 Current employee 

Oakham C of E Children & Young People’s Workforce Level 2 Current employee 

Planning Business and Administration Level 3 Current employee 

Finance Assistant Accountant Level 3 Current employee 

Finance Assistant Accountant Level 3 Left RCC 

    
 

Year 4 - 2020/21 

Target Starts: 11       Predicted: 15 

Name Course Status 

Revenues & Benefits Business and Administration Level 3 
New employee August 
2020 

Early Help, Children’s Trainee Social Worker Degree Apprenticeship Current employee 

12



APPENDIX A – APPRENTICE STARTS – Year 1 to 4 (Report 99/2020) 
 

 

Adult Social Care Trainee Social Worker Degree Apprenticeship Current employee 

Adult Social Care 
Adult Care Worker L2 / L3 / L5 - approx. 13 to 
be enrolled Current / new employees 

Management cohort ILM or similar - estimate of 5 to be enrolled Current / new employees 

 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: 100/2020 
PUBLIC REPORT 

EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 

29 September 2020 

HR POLICIES 

Report of the Strategic Director Resources 

Strategic Aim: Develop a sustainable Medium Term Financial Plan to support service 
delivery (4.3) 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr O Hemsley, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Rutland One 
Public Estate and Growth, Tourism and Economic Development, 
Communications, Resources (other than Finance) 

Contact Officer(s): Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic 
Director Resources 

01572 758159 
Sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk 

 Carol Snell, Head of Human 
Resources 

01572 720969 
csnell@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors  

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee: 

1. Approves the updated Relocation Policy (Appendix A). 

2. Approves the changes to the Council’s Special leave provision in accordance with new 
employment legislation for paid Parental Bereavement Leave. 

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 To seek approval for an updated Relocation Policy. 

1.2 To seek approval for amendments to the Council’s special leave provisions in 
response to new legislation for Parental Bereavement Leave and Pay. 

 
2 RELOCATION POLICY 

2.1 In February 2020, the Committee considered some amendments to the Relocation 
Policy and requested some further research into different provisions offered to those 
renting a property compared to home owners. 

Our current policy is that owner/occupiers have access to the full relocation scheme 
(subject to conditions - currently up to £6,000), whilst employees moving into a 

15

Agenda Item 9

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
mailto:csnell@rutland.gov.uk


rented property are entitled to up to a maximum of 50% of the overall scheme 
(currently up to £3,000). 

2.2 Whilst we can identify some authorities who do provide different rates, this is not 
consistent and is determined at a local level. 

2.3 We have therefore considered this in the Rutland context and the views of Members 
that were expressed in February, and it is recommended that the amended policy 
reflects no differentiation between employees buying and renting, offering up to 
£8,000 for qualifying expenses in relation to their move for both owner occupiers 
and renters.  

2.4 An amended policy is attached at Appendix A for Members’ consideration and 
approval.  

 
3 SPECIAL LEAVE – PAID PARENTIAL BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

3.1 On 6 April 2020, the government introduced new legislation – the Parental 
Bereavement Leave and Pay Act.    Prior to this there was no legal obligation for 
employers to provide paid time off for grieving parents.   Many employers, including 
Rutland, have local policies for some paid leave on compassionate grounds. 

3.2 The new right includes: 

3.2.1 Day-one right to 2 weeks leave if the employee loses a child under the age of 18, or 
suffers a stillbirth from 24 weeks of pregnancy 

3.2.2 Payment for the 2 weeks period if continuously employed for at least 26 weeks 
before the child’s death – otherwise it is unpaid.  Payment is at statutory rates. 
(similar to statutory maternity/paternity) 

3.2.3 Can be taken in a single block, or as two separate weeks 

3.2.4 To be taken within 56 weeks (of the death of the child).  

3.3 Rutland has an Umbrella Leave Policy that brings together all aspects of leave - 
including special/compassionate leave.  We currently provide (in addition to 
statutory minimum) 5 paid days compassionate/special leave in a 12 month period 
for bereavement, serious illness (or injury or critical illness) of a child or serious 
illness of other close relatives. 

3.4 In 2019/20 there were 23 incidents of paid special leave (20 employees) – 18 for 
bereavement and 5 for caring for serious illnesses.  
 

3.5 Losing a child is an unimaginable trauma.   We are a supportive and caring employer 
– we treat staff with dignity and compassion when faced with difficult periods in their 
personal life.    Whilst the new law is a step forward, we feel it right that we should 
offer more.  

3.6 It is therefore our recommendation to: 

3.6.1 Incorporate the new rights into our existing paid leave provision and 

3.6.2 Extend our current paid special leave for all staff (irrespective of length of service) 
up to 10 paid days at normal pay. 

16



3.7 This would represent a local policy which provides enhanced support beyond that 
provided by law.   

 
4 CONSULTATION  

4.1 The Relocation Policy had previously been approved by Unison (Trade Union) and 
will be submitted to them again with the amendment if approved. 

4.2 Unison are aware of the new Paid Parental Bereavement legislation and the 
incorporation into the Council’s Leave policies. 

 
5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

5.1 Policies and procedures provide clear and important frameworks that serve to 
protect and manage a level of risk and exposure through employee challenge and 
potential employment tribunal claims. 

5.2 The Council ensures that such policies and procedures reflect employment law, 
provisions of the national terms and conditions of employment, and best employee 
practice.   

5.3 Relocation Policy: 

5.3.1 The policy as drafted represents a model that is in line with the public sector and we 
consider provides an effective and reasonable level of support.   To provide a 
scheme with less support and provision may have a detrimental effect on 
recruitment. 

5.4 Parental Bereavement Leave: 

5.4.1 The Council could offer the base legal provision as outlined in para 3.2 with no 
additional support to staff.  

 
6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

6.1 Costs associated with Relocation have been minimal – the last claim being in 2018.   
The scheme is only offered where it is considered essential to secure an 
appointment; such costs are met from service budgets.    As the Council continues 
to support home working, it is anticipated that there will be little demand for access 
to the policy. 

6.2 Whilst there are indirect costs of staff not being at work, ie paid special leave, given 
the trauma being experienced by the individual, this is not considered a financial risk 
on the Council and its Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
7 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

7.1 The Council must be compliant with relevant employment law and regulations. 

7.2 We are able to develop our own local policy and provision that exceeds legislative 
minimum requirements. 

17



 
8 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed as there no 
risks/issues to the rights and freedoms of natural persons. 

 
9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed as there is no 
differentiation for the provisions against the Protected Characteristics.  

 
10 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no Community Safety implications arising from this report. 

 
11 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 There are no specific Health and Wellbeing implications to these particular policies 
but the Council has an overall duty of care to its employees which means taking all 
steps which are reasonably possible to ensure the health, safety and wellbeing of 
staff.  Clear and fair policies and procedures can also be a key factor in building 
trust and reinforcing commitment to our staff and help improve staff retention, 
productivity and performance and greater employee engagement.  

 
12 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS  

12.1 The Council provides updates of policies to all staff and ensures that updated copies 
are available on the Council’s intranet. 

12.2 The policy amendments in this policy will ensure we have an effective procedure to 
adopt when new staff are relocating to the area.  Also that we are able to provide 
some paid leave support for staff who unfortunately suffer the bereavement of a 
child. 

 
13 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

13.1 There are no additional background papers to the report. 

 
14 APPENDICES  

Appendix A – Relocation Policy 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 

18



 

 

Relocation Policy 

DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

 
 

1. Scope of this policy 
 
1.1 The purpose of this policy is to: 

(a) Assist eligible/new employees with expenses associated with moving to 
Rutland.  

(b) Provide the Council with a benefit to offer to new employees and to support 
the employee with a relocation of their home.   

 
1.2 It describes the circumstances in which newly appointed employees will be eligible 
for relocation assistance.  It identifies the levels of assistance that they may be entitled to, 
the procedure to be followed to request assistance, and the repayment arrangements that 
may apply.  
 
1.3 Discretion on the use of the scheme is via approval by the Chief Executive and will 
be related to the recruitment and attraction strategy for each position.    
 
2. Eligibility 
 
2.1 An employee will be entitled to claim provisions of this scheme where they meet the 
following criteria: 

 
 2.1.1 At the time of their application for appointment they live outside a 25 mile 

travelling distance measured from Catmose, Oakham, and they move to within 25 
miles of Oakham and in normal circumstances make the move within 12 months of 
the appointment.   
 
2.1.2 The employee is personally or jointly responsible for paying for the 
accommodation. 
 

2.2 The individual must have accepted a permanent position and is required to move 
house to fulfil the position.  In addition they should have no other relocation expenses being 
made for the move from any other employer or source.   
 
2.3 An employee who benefits from any or all of the provisions of the scheme will be 
required to sign an undertaking to the effect and that they full understand the conditions of 
the scheme (including repayment).   
 
2.4 All claims from this Scheme start from the first day the employee commences 
employment with the Council and must be made not later than 1 year from the date of 
appointment. The Chief Executive has the discretion to waive this time limit in exceptional 
circumstances.    

 
2.5 For payments to be made free of tax, claims must be paid by the end of the tax 
year following the year of appointment.  Any queries should be referred to Human 
Resources.   

19



 

2 
 

 
3. Provisions within the scheme 
 
3.1 A maximum of £8,000 for removal and relocation costs which may include: 
 

3.1.1 Actual removal costs and the costs of storing furniture based on the lower of 
two quotations.    

 
3.1.2 Actual legal costs concerned with selling one house and buying           another, 

including Stamp Duty. 
 
 3.1.3 Lodging and travel costs whilst selling a house. 
NB Travelling costs are defined as travelling to Rutland to find accommodation or where 

the employee chooses to travel to and from Rutland rather than stay in lodgings prior 
to the permanent move. 

 
3.1.4 Costs towards expenses incurred in the move e.g. curtains and carpets which 
will not transfer and service connections etc. 

 
3.1.5 The Council will also reimburse payment of public transport rates (standard 
class if by rail) or car mileage rates for up to 4 return journeys for the potential 
employee and partner whilst seeking accommodation prior to employment.  These 
sums will be reimbursed on the basis of receipts as soon as the employee starts 
work with the Council. 
 
3.1.7 Upon commencement of Employment with the Council, reimbursement of 
expenditure actually incurred on lodging and/or travelling up to £75 per week for the 
first six months.   
 

3.2 A maximum of two days paid leave for house hunting and/or moving house.  
 

3.3 All expenses claimed will be reimbursed within the limits specified, upon production 
of receipts and paid via payroll in the normal way. 

 
3.4 It is the responsibility of the authorising manager to monitor the scheme and to 

ensure that the amount(s) claimed are eligible and to ensure payments are 
processed in a way which is compliant for tax recording purposes and within the 
agreed limits up to a maximum of £8,000. 

 
4. Conditions of Repayment  
 
4.1 If the employee leaves the Council’s employment within two years of receiving their 

first payment under this scheme, repayment of the assistance provided is required 
on the following basis –  

 

 100% repayment up to 6 months 

 75% repayment between 6 and 12 months 

 50% repayment between 12 and 18 months 

 25% repayment between 18 months and 2 years. 
 

20



 

3 
 

4.2 If the move is not made within 12 months of the date of appointment any lodging 
and/or travelling expenses are repayable unless the Chief Executive, after 
consideration of a report on the circumstances of the case, agree to waive 
repayment. 

 
4.3 Prior to leaving the Council’s employment all monies owing may be deducted from 

the employee’s final salary following a notification to the employee of the amount 
due to the Council.  If the final salary is insufficient to reimburse the Council in 
respect of the expenditure incurred under this Relocation Scheme, then any 
outstanding sums are required to be repaid within one calendar month of the date 
of any invoice sent by the Council. 
 

4.4 These repayment conditions are waived if the officer’s post is made redundant by 
the Council. 
 

 
 
 
 

Version & Policy Number Version 2 

Guardian Human Resources 

Date Produced August 2020 

Next Review Date January 2022 

 
Approved by SMT December 2019 

Approved by LJC January 2020 

Approved by EAC  

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 APPRENTICESHIP STRATEGY
	Report 99.2020 EAC - Apprenticeship Strategy - Apprentice Starts - Appendix A

	9 HR POLICIES
	Report 100.2020 EAC - HR Policies - Relocation Policy - Appendix A


